

# MINUTES for Regular Board Meeting December 18, 2024

Meeting: 12/18/2024 7:30 – 9:30 am Mountain Time

<u>Location</u>: Zoom Meeting

https://zoom.us/j/8256677745 Meeting ID: 825 667 7745

<u>ATTENDEES</u>		
Presiding Officer:		
⊠ Korey Hampton – <b>Chair</b>		
Board Member Attendees:		
⊠ Rohan Shahani – <b>Vice</b> <b>Chair</b>	□ Leslie Sohl – Member	□ Lauren Stover – Member
<ul><li>☑ Michael Smith – Secretary</li><li>☑ Erik Marter – Treasurer</li></ul>	□ Alicia Bourke - Member     □ Jason Ong - Member	<ul><li>☐ Kennerly de Forest – Member</li><li>☑ Melissa Webb – Executive Director</li></ul>
Quorum?		
■ Yes □ No		
Guests:		
Heather Brooks JJ Stapleton	John Voegtlin	Brittany Humphrey
Meeting called to order at 7:34 am Mountain Time by Korey Hampton.		
Welcome Guests & Housekeeping   7:30a (Korey)		
Approval of Agenda   7:32 – 7:35a (Korey)		
Made by: Seconded by: Discussion: Vote:	To approve the agenda Michael Alicia Erik added the December Fin In Favor – All Opposed – None Abstaining – None  ■ Yes □ No	ancial Report to the Board folder.



## Approval of Meeting Minutes from Previous Board Meetings | 7:35 - 7:40a (Korey)

Approval of November 20, 2024 Meeting of the ACCT Board of Directors

Motion: To approve the minutes from the November 20, 2024 Meeting of

the Board of Directors

Michael Made by:

**Seconded by:** Erik

Discussion:

**Vote:** In Favor – All

Opposed - None

Abstaining – Lori **Motion Carries:** 

#### Record of Motion taken over Slack

Approval of Board of Directors Election Policy

Motion: Approve the document '2024-11-23 POLICY BOD Election

Procedures - DRAFT' as attached.

Made by: Rohan on 11/23/2024 Slack @full-board-24-25

**Seconded by:** Kennerly

Discussion: Clean-up formatting and edits that are not content driven.

**Vote:** In Favor – Jason, Lori, Kennerly, Rohan, Michael, Erik, Korey

Opposed - None Abstaining – Leslie

No vote recorded -- Alicia

**Motion Carries:** □ No 11/26/2024 5:00 p.m. MT

Approved policy is appended to these minutes.

#### Report from the Executive Director | 7:40 – 8:00a (Melissa)

- Accredited member voting and education around it. Staff need help in putting out e-mails.
- Conference Update
  - Melissa is updating the conference numbers. We are currently sitting at 477 registered attendees. Late registration ends on January 6. We tend to have people that wait until the new year. We continue to have a lot of people who have secured booths but not passes; who have responded that they plan to attend the Volunteer Social, but are not registered for the conference. Our expenses are based on having 700 attendees. Melissa is working to minimize expenses.
  - Future Contracting Melissa is reluctant to sign a contract for Tacoma 2027 until we see what this year's numbers come in at in Cleveland. Melissa and other members shared that other associations have extended registration deadlines and are seeing late registration and lower numbers.



#### Marketing Update

• The updated logo has been developed. We are evaluating feedback from the marketing team regarding their suggestion to simplify the Accredited Member logo(s). More information will be shared in the upcoming newsletter. The branding at the conference will use the new logo. An update will be delivered, and feedback solicited at the upcoming Accredited Member Symposium.

## Compliance Resolution

 Melissa and Alicia updated the Compliance Resolution Policy, which resulted in some changes to the Form.

**Motion:** Update the Code of Ethics to account for changes to the

Complaint process.

Made by: Michael Seconded by: Rohan

**Discussion:** There was some discussion about the correct path for inquiries to

come through.

Vote: In Favor – Erik, Jason, Alicia, Michael, Leslie, Rohan, Korey

Opposed -

Abstaining – Lori

Motion Carries: 

✓ Yes □ No

#### Conference Update | 8:00 - 8:16a

- Opening Ceremony planning is underway. Melissa and Matt Marcus are working on it. Melissa will be reaching out to BoD Members and Committees for help.
- Board-led Workshops (Melissa)
  - Reminder: Sit Down with ACCT Leadership IB17 Saturday from 10:30a 11:30a in Center Street C. No AV available.
  - Typically has been a PPTX with accomplishments, priorities, and discussion. For the past few
    years, the discussion has been led by the Chair and Rohan. Focus has been listening.
  - Korey will work with Melissa, Mike, and Erik to put a presentation together; combine Standards Development with other key topics.
- Meeting Schedule
  - Melissa will be sending out a conference schedule for Board Members so they know what's happening when. Calendar invites will be sent out. We will have a Board Meeting Sunday.

#### International Update | 8:17 – 8:33a

- ATOAI: Adventure Tour Operator of India Update (Lori)
  - Lori presented on ACCT Standards, Programs, and offerings. There were a lot of questions about statistics and implementation in India.



- Lori attended several sessions on how regulations are implemented in India. There is a real need for standards around adventure tourism.
- ACCT needs to decide what involvement it might have in assisting India. An MOU would be
  the first step. Lori suggested an MOU with ATOAI rather than directly with the Bureau of India
  Standards to act as a guide.
- Rohan shared that we should move slowly.
- Belize Update (Mike & Korey)
  - Michael and Korey will be meeting with Llyod Enriquez to discuss Belize's new regulations. The regulations are not adopting ACCT or any other international standard directly but rather, crafting their own. Michael reached out to Jeff Boeke who had issued a document making recommendations in 2018. The document has been referred to as ACCT support, despite it not being the intent of the document.
- Melissa and Korey are working on a Government Relations Term of Reference. How to handle international inquiries must be a future topic for Board Discussion.

#### Board Elections Update | 8:33 – 8:48a

- Nominees we have received three nominations as of today's meeting. One for Accredited Operations, two for Accredited Vendors. We do not currently have someone running for General Membership.
- Election Communication
  - Website Updates John has made updates to the website.
  - The newsletter is scheduled to go out tomorrow. The newsletter with info about Nominees goes out on January 2. Office staff are trying to wrap that up by the end of this week.
  - Nominations close on January 7, 2025
  - Open Office Hours Monday, January 6, 2025 @ 6 pm MT

## New Board Member Onboarding | 8:30 – 8:55a (Rohan, Korey)

 We need to schedule meetings for after the Conference. Looking for a Board Volunteer to assist with leading meetings to catch new members up to speed.

#### ASD/Standards Development Topics | 8:55 – 9:07a (Michael)

- Consensus Group/Body Update The ASD has invited members of the Consensus Group to meet on Thursday, December 19 11:00am MT. Michael, Korey, Melissa, and John will attend.
- ASTM Zip Line Brake Update ballot came out yesterday; it includes language that is closer to current ANSI/ACCT H.1. requirements. Brake requirements are based on average incoming speed.
- APTF2 Update Board needs to approve the Chair. Mike has reached out to several candidates.
- PRCA confirmed Michael Smith as ACCT's Representative on their Standards Development



Committee. Michael will be attending the PRCA Conference in Underwood, Indiana from January 16-19, 2025.

## Board Emeritus | 9:07 – 9:30a

- Discuss revisions to the Terms of Reference (Michael)
  - Michael made some updates to the Board Emeritus Terms of Reference to reflect recent changes to our Bylaws. The updates were discussed. Michael will create a clean copy, adding notes for historical context.
- Nominations (closed session) (Korey)

Motion: To move into closed session to discuss nominations for Board Emeritus

Made by: Erik Seconded by: Rohan

Discussion:

**Vote:** In Favor – All

Opposed – None Abstaining – None

Motion Carries: 

✓ Yes □ No

Board moved into closed sessions at 9:12 am.

Board left closed sessions at 9:34 am.

#### Meeting Closing | 9:30a (Korey)

Motion: To adjourn the meeting.

Made by: Rohan
Seconded by: Erik
Discussion:

**Vote:** In Favor – all

Opposed – none Abstaining – none

Motion Carries: 

✓ Yes 

✓ No

Meeting was adjourned at 9:35 am Mountain Time.



Association for Challenge Course Technology PO Box 19797 Boulder, CO 80308, USA

Phone: 800-991-0286 | www.acctinfo.org

## **Code of Ethics**

## **Policy:**

All ACCT members shall accurately represent themselves and their companies in accordance with the Code of Ethics policy.

## **Purpose:**

It is understood and expected that members of the Association for Challenge Course Technology (ACCT) at every level strive to conduct business and interact with the highest good of the challenge course community in mind, including the clients, vendors, end users, and ACCT itself. The Code of Ethics serves to provide a frame of reference for members of ACCT and those served by the members. All ethical standards apply to Business to Business Members (vendors, suppliers, manufacturers), Business to Client Service Providers (operators, practitioners), Industry Stakeholder/Affiliate Members (organizations or entities that have an interest in the challenge course market), and individual members, their staff, representatives, volunteers, and contractors (herein referenced individually as "Member" and collectively as "Members"). All Members of ACCT are expected to follow the standard of ethical conduct as defined and detailed here. This code is not intended to establish a legal duty among ACCT Members or to persons or entities served by ACCT Members where one would not otherwise exist.

#### This document will:

- 1. Clarify the ethical conduct expected of members of the Association for Challenge Course Technology.
- 2. Support the mission and the vision of the Association for Challenge Course Technology.
- 3. Establish ethical guidelines for professional behavior and business practices.
- 4. Provide a foundation for use in reviewing and addressing ethical concerns and complaints within the association membership.

## **Requirements:**

#### A. Sales and Marketing

- 1. Members accurately identify their type of membership, certification, or accreditation with ACCT. Example: whether an organization is an Accredited Operator or Accredited Vendor, or a non-accredited Business to Client (B2C) or Business to Business (B2B) member.
- 2. Members accurately communicate to clients and potential clients their certifications and accreditations. Example: practitioners communicating their level of certification, or Accredited Vendor Members communicating the service areas for which they have been accredited.
- 3. Members adhere to ACCT policies and guidelines for use of the ACCT logo and only display the ACCT logo issued to them by ACCT. Example: obtaining written permission from ACCT for any and all use of the ACCT logo.



Association for Challenge Course Technology PO Box 19797 Boulder, CO 80308, USA Phone: 800-991-0286 | www.acctinfo.org

- 4. Members accurately identify their competence and professional experience. For example, vendors identify their experience as designers, installers, inspectors, facilitators, trainers, and so on. Practitioners identify their qualifications and certifications.
- 5. Members accurately represent their level of education and training as well as licensure, if any. Example: contractor's license for organizations and individual credentials such as counseling degrees or similar.
- 6. Members market themselves and the challenge course community in a positive manner. Members avoid false or unfair statements about competitors.

## **B.** Competence

- Members accept only work that fits within their individual or organizational training/education, experience, and competence. Members recognize when additional competence and expertise is needed and have a system in place to bring in the necessary core competence or expertise, or to refer out to a qualified individual or organization. Example: installers who need additional engineering expertise or operators who need additional professional training to provide corporate development programs.
- 2. Members have systems in place to assess an organization's and individual's competence to properly assign responsibilities.
- 3. Members strive to provide products and services that meet ACCT written standards and, in the absence of written standards, follow commonly accepted practices. Example: the use of proof-tested materials such as quick links or cable clamps versus non-verified materials.

## C. Professional Responsibility

- 1. Members design, install, train, operate, and inspect according to ACCT Standards.
- 2. Members will take reasonable steps to manage the risks associated with challenge course activities. Example: an employer providing appropriate personal protective equipment to employees and a program having systems in place to account for weather or gear retirement.
- 3. Members strive to maintain professional communication, interaction, relationships, and dealings with all stakeholders. Example: one vendor talking to another about differences in interpretation of the ACCT standards. Stakeholders can include, but are not limited to, owners, creditors, clients, competitors, or peers.
- 4. Members follow business practices that maintain or enhance the professional standing of the field. Example: vendors and operators providing documentation in a timely manner.
- 5. Members follow business practices that maintain and enhance the profession.
- 6. Members demonstrate a commitment to be guided by the best interests of the program participants, client organizations, and membership of ACCT.
- 7. Members make a clear distinction between ACCT Standards, industry standards, commonly accepted practices, and company or personal preferences. Example: statements in challenge course inspection letters as well as operations on specific challenge courses.
- 8. Members are aware of and work to avoid professional and personal conflicts of interest in their business practices. Example: personal relationships with staff and/or clients that conflict with or distract from professional dealings.



Association for Challenge Course Technology PO Box 19797 Boulder, CO 80308, USA Phone: 800-991-0286 | www.acctinfo.org

## D. Confidentiality and Protected Information

- 1. Members adhere to applicable laws and commonly accepted practices regarding legally protected information, including (but not limited to) copyrights, trademarks, and patents.
- 2. Members protect the practices and designs of other organizations and individuals when there is an understanding or agreement to do so. Example: variations on activities that have been specially designed by a program and that the program deems, or might reasonably deem, confidential.
- 3. Members adhere to laws and commonly accepted practices pertaining to protected client information, including (but not limited to) medical or therapeutic information.

## E. Management / Administration

- 1. Members follow commonly accepted ethical practices with regard to recruiting, hiring, training, supervising, and managing staff. Example: vendors and operators accurately describe the work and benefits when recruiting employees; vendors and operators take corrective action with employees to ensure optimal training and performance.
- 2. Members follow commonly accepted industry management and administrative practices. Example: the use of contracts or annual inspections of challenge courses.
- 3. Members adhere to all standards and/or requirements applicable to their ACCT membership. Example: for a PVM, include record keeping for certification or inspections.
- 4. Members adhere to industry standards for proper insurance coverage to protect employees, clients, and end users. Example: carrying appropriate liability insurance as well as workers' compensation, where needed.

## **Procedures for Resolving Complaints**

The ACCT Compliance Resolution Procedure is established to ensure that all reports of non-compliance with ACCT programs, policies, and procedures within ACCT are addressed fairly, transparently, and professionally. The Executive Director, with the support of the Compliance Committee and the Board of Directors, will work to maintain the integrity and reputation of the Association while responding to reports of non-compliance.

Many issues can be resolved with direct, open, and honest communication. Complaints must directly relate to ACCT programs policies, volunteer policies, or the Code of Ethics. They may be made against ACCT members, program participants, volunteers, or staff. Complaints relating to the ANSI Standards Development Process or Consensus Body should follow what is outlined in ACCT's Accredited Procedures.

The compliance resolution procedures described here are designed to assist individuals and organizations who have been unable to resolve issues on their own. Participation in the resolution process does not preclude the right to legal recourse. ACCT reserves the right not to review a submitted complaint if it is determined that it does not meet the criteria for the compliance resolution process. ACCT has a Conflict Resolution Procedure in place for organizations and individuals who cannot resolve ethical issues on their own. For more information or to request forms, please contact the Executive Director, Board Chair, or mail compliance@acctinfo.org.



Phone: 800,991,0386 Lywwy acstinfo org

Phone: 800-991-0286 | www.acctinfo.org

## **A. Compliance Resolution Procedure**

This process applies directly to members of ACCT and those parties affected by them.

- 1. Communicate your concerns to the other person(s) or organization(s) involved in the dispute and attempt to resolve the conflict informally. If unsuccessful, continue with the following steps.
- Any active ACCT member or party impacted by an active ACCT member who wishes to lodge a complaint can submit it in writing to the Executive Director and other parties involved via the <u>ACCT CONFLICT RESOLUTION</u> <u>FORM</u>. Complaints concerning the Executive Director should be emailed directly to the Chair of the Board of Directors and Board Liaison to the Compliance Committee at compliance@acctinfo.org.
- 3. The complaint shall include detailed information regarding specific policies in question, the nature of the grievance, relevant dates, parties involved, and any supporting documentation.
  - a. The complainant must have taken action to resolve the matter prior to submitting the grievance form to the Executive Director and involved parties.
  - b. ACCT shall maintain the confidentiality of all parties involved throughout the complaint resolution process in accordance with ACCT policies and to the extent allowed by law.
- 4. Review by the Executive Director and/or Board Chair:
  - a. The Executive Director is responsible for receiving and acknowledging the complaint. Allow for up to 30 days for a response.
  - b. The Executive Director and/or Board Chair will conduct an initial review to determine the validity and seriousness of the complaint.
    - i. When necessary, the Executive Director and/or Board Chair will consult with the Compliance Committee, the Board of Directors, the Board Emeritus, ACCT Staff, or ACCT professional advisors before creating a review panel to address the complaint.
  - c. The Executive Director and Board Chair, depending on who is fielding the complaint, reserves the right not to review it. Complaints must directly relate to ACCT programs policies, volunteer policies, or the Code of Ethics. They may be made against ACCT members, program participants, volunteers, or staff. Complaints relating to the ANSI process or Consensus Body should follow the process outlined in the ACCT's Accredited Procedures.

#### 5. Formation of Review Panel:

- a. A review panel may be formed at the discretion of the Executive Director and/or Board Chair. The panel will be made up of 3 to 5 individuals, including members of the Board of Directors, Board Emeritus, ACCT members, or a combination of these groups.
- b. The composition of the panel shall be determined by the Executive Director and/or Board Chair, following review of any conflicts of interests and impartiality.
- 6. Review and Vetting Process:
  - a. The Review Panel shall arrange how to hear the complaint and shall notify the parties of the process. This process does not require all parties to be present when information is shared; rather it requires the panel



Phone: 900 001 0326 Lywyy acstinfo org

Phone: 800-991-0286 | www.acctinfo.org

to provide an opportunity for all parties to provide information they want considered that is pertinent to the complaint.

b. The panel will assess the complaint's merit and provide recommendations or findings.

#### 7. Communication with Complainant:

a. The Executive Director and/or Board Chair will communicate the results of the review to the involved parties. If the complaint is found to be justified, the Executive Director and/or Board Chair will outline any actions to be taken in response.

#### 8. Record Keeping:

a. ACCT will maintain records of the complaint, review, and actions taken for reference and transparency in accordance with the ACCT Document Retention Policy.

#### 9. Periodic Reporting:

a. The Executive Director and/or Board Chair may provide periodic reports to the ACCT Board of Directors on the resolution of complaints.

#### 10. Actions and Resolutions:

- a. It is important to note that the ACCT Code of Ethics and Compliance Resolution Procedure serve as a reference for ethical behavior and actions as well as a framework to help resolve conflicts and misunderstandings between ACCT members, program participants, volunteers, or staff. Depending on the findings of the Review Panel, ACCT may implement appropriate actions to address the complaint. These actions may include corrective measures, policy adjustments, or other suitable remedies such as but not limited to revocation of accreditation, certification, membership, ACCT volunteer status, and/or dismissal from the ACCT community.
- b. ACCT reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to address or not address complaints, and to take or not take corrective action, which right shall not impart duties upon it.

#### 11. Review Panel Disbandment:

a. Once the complaint has been addressed, the Review Panel will be disbanded.